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Ca1e Background 

On June 27, 1997 , Wi ~eless One Netwo rk, L . P ., d/b/a Cellular 

One o f Sout.hwest Florida (Wireless OneJ , a Commercial Hol>i l e Radio 

Se rvice (CHRS) provider, filed a Comolaint ond/or Pe t it i o n for 

Arbitration Pursuant to Sectio n 252 of the Tolccommynications Act 

o f 1996 ond Reau011t for Expedited Hear ing Puuuon t to FL . S t. 

s ection 364. 058 (Petition) llCJOinst Sprint f'londa, Incorpor at.cd 

(Sprint) . 

In its Petition, wireless One asks that. t.ho CoiMI Itt lllon o rdor 

Sprint to make tho terms a nd conditio ns o f Sprint ' s interim 

oorn<>mcnt with Palmer Wi reless, Inc . (Palmer) available to t~!reless 

One . Wireless One also asks that tho Commission f ind Sprint. In 
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violation of Sections 252 (e), (h) , and 252 (i) of the 
Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the Act), and order Sprint to 
refund the difference between the rates that Wireless One is paying 
now under Sprint's tariff and the rates available under the Palmer 
agreement . In its Memorandum of Law i n support o f i t s petition, 
Wireless One acknowledges that its petition and the issues 
addressed therein are somewhat novel but states that it has styled 
it in this manner based on lack or ouidance !rom the Act and from 
Commission rules . Wi reless One also asserts in its Memorandum that 
while it wants the terms and conditions ot the Sprint/Palmer 
agreement, arbitration of its issues with Spr int would lead t o the 
results it seeks. 

On July 22, 1997, Sprint timel y fil ed it~ Motion to Dismiss 
and/or Answer to Wi reless One' s Petition . In its response, Sprint 
asks that the Commission dismiss Wireless One ' s petition for 
arbitration/complaint because it is premature and because the 
relief r equested is based upon the availability oC the 
Sprint/Palmer agreement, which was filed but not yet approved by 
the Commission . 

On ~ .gust 4, 1997, Wireless One responded to Sprint ' s Motion 
to Dismiss . At its August 5, 1997, Agenda Conference, the 
Commission approved the Sprint/Palmer interim agreement 1n Docket 
No. 970 166-TP. 

This recommendation addresses Sprint' s Mot i ~n to Dismiss 
Wireless One' s Complaint and/or Petition . 

DISCUSSIQH OF ISSY£8 

ISSVE 1: Should the Commission grant Sprin t-Flor ida , Incorporated's 
Motion to Dismiss the Complaint and/or Pet ition of Wireless One 
Network, L.P.? 

R£CQHHENDATIQN : Yes. The Commission should orant Sprint's Motion 
to Dismiss ~ireless One' s Petition. Even when viewed ln the light 
most fa vorable to the petitioner, Wireless One' s Petition does not 
state a cause of action upon which relief can be qranted at this 
time . 

STAfF ANALJSIS : Pursuant to Rule 1.420(b), Florida Rules of Civil 
Procedure, a party may move to dismiss another party's request for 
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r elief on t he oround that, on the facts and the law, the party 
seekinq relief has not shown a riqht to rel ief . 

Wireless One 's Petit ion should be viewed in the light most 
favo rable to Wi reless One, in o r der to determine whether Wireless 
One' s c laim is cognizable under the provisions of Section 252 of 
the Act. As stated by the Court i n yornes y . pawkins, 624 So . 2d 
349, 350 (Fla . lst DCA 1993) , • [t)he function o f a motion to 
dismiss is to raise as a ques t ion o f law the su ff iciency of facts 
alleoed to stb ce a cause of action.• 

Wirele3s Qne'o Petition 

In i ts Petition, Wireless One asserts that by letter dated 
Auoust 2, 1996, Wireless One requeoted interconnection neootiations 
with Sprint pursuant to Sec tion 252 o f the Telecommunicat ions Ac t 
of 1996 (the Act) . Wi reless One aloo asserts that it moni t o red 
Commission dockets to determine whether Sprint had entered i nto 
interconn'lction agreerento wi th other a.RS providers. As of 
January J l, 1997, Sprint had not filed any interconnection 
aoreomonts with other CMRS providers . Wireless One asserts that it 
then requested, and Sprint provided, a Draft Master Net work 
Interconnection and Resale Agreement (Dra ft Agreement ) for Wi reless 
One's review. The Draft Agreement was, however, intended fo r use 
in agreements with alternative local exchange providers (1\LECs) . 

Wireless One states that on April 9, 1997, it informed Sprin t 
that the Draft Agreement would not su ffi ce . Sprint then provided 
Wireless One with a Drott CMRS Interconnection Agreement (a.Rs 
Agreement ) . Sprint also i nformed Wireless One that i t could get 
copies of other ~ agreements from the Commission. 

Wi reless One fur ther asserts thal , at the llmo Spr lnl provided 
Wirel ess One with the Draft 1\qrcement , Sprinl was uwolved in 
onc;~oinq neootialions with Palmer. Wl reless One sta t~s that on 
February 11, 1997 , Sprint executed an inter im interconnect ion 
aoreement with Palmer . Wireless One cla ims that Sprint did not 
inform Wi reless One of its OC)reement wi th Palmer . Wi reless One 
asserts that the Palmer/Sprint a9reement became e f !ectlve March 1, 
1997, and contained rates that ore approximately $30,000 per month 
less than what Wireless One currently pays Sprint for CMRS 
interconnection under Sprint ' s tariff. 

Wireless One next asserts that Sprint provided it with a copy 
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of the Palmer/Spnnt agreement on April 21 , 1997. Sp!"int hod not, 
however, submitted the agreement for Commlsston approval . On Hay 
9, 1997, Wireless One requested the mator1al terms o f the interim 
Palmer int e rconnection agreement . Wireless One asserts that Sprint 
refused Wireless One' s request by letter dated Hay 16, I 997 . 
Wireless One states that it renewed its request for the material 
terms of the Sprint/Palmer agreement on June 6, 1997. Again, 
Sprint refused . 

Wireless One t hen filed i ts Petition on June 27, 1997 . 
Therein, Wireless One seeks the following: 

1. that the matter be set for an cxpcdlted 
hearing; 

2 . that tho Commission fi nd that Sprint's 
failure to submit the interim Palmer agreement 
t or approval vio~ated Section 252 (c) of tha 
Act; 

3. tha t the Commission order Sprint to ~ubmlt 
the intezlm Sprint/Palmer agreement for 
approval; 

~. that the Commission 
Sprint/Palmer i nterconnection 
this proceeding ; 

approve the 
agreement in 

5 . that the Commission find that the terms 
and conditions o f tho Inte r im Sprint/Palmer 
agreement are available to Wireless One 
effective March 1, 1997; 

6. that the Commission !ind that 
failure to provide Wireless One with 
terms and condi t ions o f t ho 
Sprint/Palmer agroomont viol ated 
252(i) o f t ho Act ; 

Sprint ' s 
the 8ame 
interi'D 
Section 

7 . that the Commission order Sprint to 
refund, with interest , tho di fference between 
the ra tes it has paid Sprint since March 1, 
1997, and the amount Wireless One would have 
paid Sprint during the period 1f Sprint had 
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made the interim Sprint/Palmer aqreement 
available to Wireless One; and 

8. that the Commission order any additional 
or alternative relief as may be appropriate. 

Sprint's Motion tg pismiss 

On July 22, 1997, Sprint timely filed its Motion lo Dismiss 
and/or Answer to Wireless One' s Petition. In its response, Sprint 
asks that the Commission dismiss WirelPSS One's action for 
arbitrati ~n/colllplaint because it is premature and because the 
relief requested is based on the availability of tho Palmer 
aqreement, which was filed but not yet approved by the Commission. 

Sprint arques that Wireless One's Pctltion states that 
negotiations beqan on April 9, 1997. As such, Sprint arques that 
the 135 day time period set by the Act for neqotiation prior to 
arbitration will not end until Auqust 23, 1997 . Sprint, therefore, 
argues that Wireless One ' s request is prem~~ture. Cilinq ~ 
Utili ties Boua y. rcc, 1997 WL 403401 at 10 18th Cir.), Sprint 
states that the Petition should, there fore, be dismissed. 

Furthermore, Sprint srques that even examining Wireless One' s 
Petition in the liqht rnost favorable to Wireless One , the facts 
disclose that tho petltion is premature . Pursuant to SocLion 
252(il of the Act 

A l ocal exchanqe carrier shall make available 
any interconnection, service, or network 
element provided under an Agreement opproyed 
under thi3 section to which it is a party to 
any other telecommunications ca rrier upon the 
some terms and conditions as those provided in 
the Aqreement. 
(Emphasis added by Sprint) 

Sprint states that while the Palmer interim aqreement has been 
(iled with the Commission, the Commission has not yet approved the 
aqreo::~ent . Sprint further notes that the Commission might have 
decided not to approve the aqre811lent. Sprint, therefore, arques 
that Wireless One's petition is premature because the Palmer 
interim aqreement was not yet approved. Thus, the 11ct icn should be 
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dismissed. 

Wireless One'o Resoon5e tg t he Mo t ign 

In its response, Wireless One arques that its 

Complaint/Petition is not premature under ~ 7 u.s.c . § 252(b) . 

Wi reless One argues that it clearly expla i ned In its petition that 

it only styled the petition as a comp laint and/or petition for 

arbitrat ion because ot the lack ot clear guidelines on how Wi reless 

One should seek redre~s for its particular grievance. Wireless One 

states that the Act does not requi re a carrier to wait unti l the 

arbitration window opens before it may complain to the Commission 

about the in~ent LEC' s unlawful conduc t. Citinq Ord~r No . PSC-

97 - 0722-PCO-TP, issued i n Docket No . 970~96-TP, Wireless One 

fu rther asserts that the Commission has a l r eady recoqnized that a 

Ru le 25- 22 . 036, Florida Administrative Codo, complaint is an 
appropriate means o f enforcinq the provisions of t he Ac t . Wireless 

One notes that the Ei ghth Circuit has also recognized the s tate 

co111111iss ions ' jurisdi ction to enf orce the Act' s provisions . ~ 

Igwa Utilities Bgord. et ol . . y. federal Commynlcotiono Commi3s1on, 

1997 WL 40401, at 11-13 (8th Cir ., July 18 , 1997). 

Wire·ass One also arques that it i~ i~terial that the Palmer 

aqreement has not yet been approved by the Commission . Wireless 
One argues that had Sprint filed the Palmer aqreement fo r approval 

in a timely manner, the Commission would have already ruled upon 

the agreemant. 

In addition, Wi reless One arques that 1 t hdS a compl a tnt 

against Sprint that is coqnizable under Rule 25-22 . 036 , Florida 

Administrative Code. Thus, Wireless One seeks a determination that 

Sprint' s conduct violated Sections 252(e) and 252111 o f the Act, 
application ot the Palmer aqr eement to Wireless One, and a refund 

o f t he amount Wireless One has paid Lo Sprint in excess of what 

Wireless One would have paid under the Spr int/Palmer aqreement. 

STAfF'S CONCLUSION 

After reviewinq Wireless One• s Petition in Lhe liqht most 

favo rable t o the petitioner, start believes that the Petition 
and/or uomplaint is premature because it seeks r elief under tho Act 

based upon An aqreement that had not been approved aL the time of 

the filinQ o f tho complaint. 
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A . Wireless One's Comp laint ts Prematur e 

Section 2!'12 111 clearly requires that an aoreement must be 
approved under Section 2!'12 by the State commission befo re a local 
exchanoe company (LEC) is required to make the terms and conditions 
available to other carriers. If prior approval of aoreements was 
not required, COmmission denial of a particula r oriqinal aqreemenl 
would render any other carriers ' adoption of that A9~9ement 

unenfor ceable. 

Although the Spr int/Palmer interim agreement was filed Hay 20, 
1997, the agreel"'lnt had not been approved as o r the date of 

Wi r eless One's June 27, 1997, Petition . Wireless One has, 
therefore, failed to sta te a cause of action upon wh1ch the 
Commission may grant relief. Thus , Sprint ' s motion should be 
oranted. 

B. Sprint has not yiolated Sectipn 252!e l o t the Act 

In concluding that Wireless One' s Petition is premature under 
section 252(i) , staff believes it is appropriate to also briefly 
address Wirr less One's assertion that Sprint violated Section 
2!i2(e) by net informing Wi reless One o r th~ Sprint/Palmer agreement 
and by not filing the agreement earlier. 
Seclion 252(e) (1) states 

Any interconnection agreement adopted by 
negotiation o r arbit ration shall be submitted 
for approval to the State commission. A Stote 
commission to which an aqrcomcnt is submitted 
shall epprove or reject the aqreement, w.ith 
written f indings as t o any deficiencies. 

While the Act clearly requires that neqotiated agreements be filed 
for approval by the commission, 1 t does not state that such 
aqreements must be filed by n date certain !ollowinq execution o! 
the agreement. FCC Order 96-325 is also silent on the subject . 

As s tated above, the Spr int/Pelmcr interim agreement was filed 
on May 20, 1997. While the agreement was signed by Palmer on 
February 14, 1997, according to Sprint's reapon!Hl . rnlm~>1 did lhll 

notify Sprint that it h!ld oxecut.ad 1 hn noruumunl nnlll MnL Ch 17 , 
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1997. Unt il that da te, Spr int asserts that it was not aware that 
its o ffer had been accepted. Sprint further alleges that once it 
knew that the agreement had been executed, it was unsure o! whether 
it had to fi l e the interim agreement tor Commus1on approval . 
Sprint asserts that it did not file the Sprint/Palmer agreement 
sooner baaed upon a qood faith belief that the interim agreement 
would be converted to a permanent agreement within a very short 
time . Staff does not condone Sprlnt' s lack of action in not filing 
its interim agreement f or Commission approval sooner. 
Nevertheless , sta ff does not bl!lieve that Sprint has violated 
Section 252(e) fo r the reasons set forth above. Staf f notes that 
it is currently investiqating this issue in an effort t o find ways 
to prevent future misunderstandings and delays o ! this sort. 

C. Untimely regueot fgr orbl trotion 

I n addition, i f the Petition is viewed as a request t or 
arbitration, staff believes tha t the Petition Is untimely. ot the 
numer ous letters transmitted from Wireless One to Sprint, two 
letters could be considered letters requesting negotiation of an 
interconnection agreement under Section 252 o f tho Act . Under 
Sectior 252 (b) , a rarty may only pet ition the Commission to 
arbitrate unresolved issues during the period from the 13Sth day to 
the 160th day followinq a request f? r negotiation under the Act. 
The first letter that could be considered a request !or negotiation 
is the letter dated August 2, 1996. Using that date as tho start 
date, the 13Sth day falls on December 15, 1996, and the !60th day 
falls on January 9, 1997 . In this ci rcumstance , the request Cor 
arbit ration is late. The second letter was dated April 9 , 1997. 
Using that date as the date of tne request Cor negotiations, the 
13Sth day falls on August 22, 1997 . In this ci rcumstance, lhe 
request is premature. In both ci rcumstances, the petit1on ~ s 

untimely . 

p. Botrooct iye active application of agreements and rcsultlnq 
refunds not contemplated by the Act 

Furthermore, reqarding Wireless One' s request fo r refund of 
the difference between the rates Wi reless One has been paying since 
March 1, 1997, under Sprint's tari! C and those rates set forth in 
the Spr int/Palmer interi m agreement, sta!t believes that the rcl1er 
requested is not contemplated under the Act for two rea eons . 
Firet, since the Palmer agreement had not been approved a~ ot tho 
date of Wiroleas Ono' s petition , tho rates sot forth in tho Palmer 
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agreement wer e not yet available to Wireless One . Therefore, 
Wireless One should not be able seek a refund based on rates that 
wer e not yet available to it. Second, sta ff does not believe that 
Commission approval of an agr eement under the Ac t was intended to 
require LECs to make the r ates , terms, and conditi ons of negotiated 
agreements avai lable to other car r iers r etroactively. If such were 
the case, any carrier could seek a refund based on rates sot fo r th 
in any agreement that had an effecti ve date prior to the date o f 
Co~sslon approval. In addition, staff notes that a great many o f 
the negotiated interconnection and resale agreements already 
approved by th~ Commission had effective dates prior to the date 
the agr eements wer e presented !or Commission approval. A 
determination that, upon Commission opproval, any company ~r.ay 

obtain an aqreement under 2521il retroacti ve to lhe e ffecti ve date 
of that agreement would, staff envisions, initiate a huge number of 
requests for r e fundo. After careful review o! the Ac t, staff 
believes that the Ac t requires that the efCective date of a 
negotiated agreement, fo r purposes of availability to other 
car riers under Section 252 (1) , is the date of Commission opprovol 
of the agreement. 

E. ~ffect of Coroml saipn approval of Spr i nt/Po lmer Agreement 

Staff also notes that in Wireless One's response to Spr int ' s 
Motion to Dismiss, Wir eless One suggests that because the 
Commission will have ruled upon the Sprint/Palmer agreement before 
Sprint ' s Motion to Dismiss is considered, Sprint 's argument that 
Wireless One must await Commission approval o C the Sprint/Palmer 
agreement will be mooted. Then, i n ita statement of rel ief in its 
response to the Motion to D1sm1BB , Wireless One requests 
application of the Sprint/Palmer agreement to Wireless One . Sta ff, 
however, does not believe that Wireless One requested applicat1on 
of the Sprint/Palmer agreement to Wireless One ln Wi reless One ' s 
Petition . In its Petition, Wirel ess One only requests that the 
Commission ~ .. . rule that the terms and conditions of the interim 
Palmer interconnection agreement are available to Wireless One 
effective March 1, 1997, pursuant to 47 u.s.c. § 2~2(1 1 .H Within 

e four corners of Wireless One' a pe tition, this Js tho onl y 
atemont regardin9 Wireless Onc' o desire to have the terms and 
nditions of the Sprint/Palmer agreement made available to it . ' 

1I n its Memorandum In Support ot Psge 4, Wi reless One also 
requests that t he Commission determine that the torms and 
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.5Ju:. Vornco v. DAwkins, 624 So. 2d 349, 350 ! Fla. 1st DCA 1993), 
See Also Holland v . Aohey3er Bu3ch . Inc . , 643 So . 2d 621 (fla. 2nd 
DCA 1994) (stating that it is improper to consider information 
extrinsic to the complaint). Wireless One's prayer for relief in 
its petition only requests that the terms and conditio .. ,; be made 
available t o Wireless One and it includes the additional .request 
that the availability of those terms and conditions be :-etroacti vc 
to the agreement's effective date, March 1, 1997. ' As previously 
discussed, staff does not believe that retroactive application o ! 
an agreement is contemplated by the Act . 

Although s taff believes that Wireless One's petition should be 
dismissed for all the reasons cited, we note that because tho 
Sprint/Palmer interim agreement has now been approved, Wireless One 
can elect to take that interim agreement as of the date or its 
approval by this Commission, August 5, 1997, until the agreement's 
expiration, December 31, 1997. 

Based on the forego1nq, staff believes that Wireless One ' s 
Petition and/or Complaint has not been tiled within the time period 
set by the Act for requests for arbitration, and it is premature 
tor relief under Section 252 lil . A:J such, tho Petition does not 

conditions of the Sprint/Palmer agreement are available to 
Wireless One as of March 1, 1997. The Memorandum is not, 
however, alluded to in the Petition. ~ Hyer3 v . State, 539 So. 
2d 525 at 526 and Footnote 2 (Fla. 1st DCA 1989) (separate 
memorandum considered part o f the motion when ~eparately swor n to 
and the memorandum was specifically incorporated by reference 
into the motion.) 

'Start further notes that it Wireless One ' s Memorandum in 
Support is to be considered a part of its Petition, Footnote 6 of 
the Memorandum should be considered in analyzing Wireless One ' s 
request fo r relief. At Footnote 6, Wireless one states, in part, 
that " ... (Wireless One) is merely seeking a determination as 
to Sprint's present obligations under the statute Lo provide IL 
with the sa=e terms and conditions o! interconnoc tlon that it 
provided to another telecommunications carrier." !Emphasis 
added) . By its Petition, Wi reless One does not appear to seek 
actual application o! the entire interim aqreement, but only the 
Commission 's determination that the aoreement must be made 
available in the manner in which Wireless One has requested . 
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allege !acta sufficient 
reli ef can be granted. 
therefore, be granted. 

to state a cause of action upon which 
Sprint's Motion t o Dismiss should, 
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ISSYE 2 : Should this docket be closed? 

BECOI+IENDATICif : Yes. It the Co!Miission approves state' s 

recommendation in Issue 1, no furthe r issues will remain in this 
docket tor the Commission t o address . Th i s docket should, 
therefore, be closed. 

STAFF AHt\l,XBIS : Yes . 
recommendation in Issue 1, 
docket tor thP Commission 
therefore, be closed. 

I! the Commission approves s taff' s 
no furthe r issues will remain in this 

t o address . This docket should, 
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